A REGULAR MEETING
Of The
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER BOARD
Will Be Held On
TUESDAY, February 23, 2016
At
S:15 p.m.
In The
COMMISSION CHAMBERS

(2™ floor, Governmental Center)
400 Boardman Avenue

Traverse City Light and Power will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services,
such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at
the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon notice to Traverse City
Light and Power. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact
the Light and Power Department by writing or calling the following.

Traverse City Light and Power

1131 Hastings Street

Stephanie Tvardek
Administrative Assistant
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686
(231) 922-4940 ext. 201

Traverse City, MI 49686

(231) 922-4940

Posting Date: 02-18-16

4:00 p.m.



Light and Power Board 2 February 23, 2016
Regular Meeting

AGENDA
Pledge of Allegiance
1. Roll Call

2. Consent Calendar

a. Consideration of approving minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 9, 2016.
(Approval recommended) (p. 4)

b. Consideration of declaring capital asset items surplus. (Approval recommended) (Myers-
Beman) (p. 8)

c. Consideration of approval of the fiber fund budget. (Approval recommended) (Myers-
Beman) (p. 9)

d. Consideration of authorizing an additional $50,000 for the energy efficiency revolving
loan fund held with Venture North. (Approval recommended) (Arends) (p. 11)

e. Consideration of adopting a Capital Improvement Decision Sequence Policy. (Approval
recommended) (Arends) (p. 15)

Items Removed from the Consent Calendar

a.

b.

3. Unfinished Business

None.

4. New Business

a. Consideration of solar avoided cost rate tariff and setting of a Public Hearing. (Myers-
Beman/Utility Financial Solutions) (p. 18)

b. Consideration of Pole Replacement Project Authorization Request, (Schimpke) (p. 31)

5. Appointments

None.

6. Reports and Communications

a. From Legal Counsel.

b. From Staff.



Light and Power Board 3 February 23, 2016
Regular Meeting

1. Presentation of December 31, 2015 financial statements. (Myers-Beman) (p. 34)
2. Presentation of a system study proposal. (Schimpke) (p. 42)

C. From Board,

7. Public Comment

fst



TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

Minutes of Regular Meeting
Held at 5:15 p.m., Commission Chambers, Governmental Center
Tuesday, February 9, 2016

Board Members -
Present: Pat McGuire, Jeff Palisin, Amy Shamroe, Bob Spence, Tim Werner, Jan
Geht, John Taylor
Ex Officio Member -

Present: Marty Colburn, City Manager

Others:

Karla Myers-Beman, Controller
5:21 p.m. Bob Spence joined the meeting,

Moved by McGuire, seconded by Palisin, that the Traverse City Light & Power Strategic Plan —
2016 be adopted as presented.

CARRIED unanimously.

Item 3 on the Agenda being Unfinished Business




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 2 February 9, 2016

None.

Item 4 on the Agenda being New Business

i, 2014-15 financial audit presentation.
The following individuals addressed the Board:

Karla Myers-Beman, Controller
Alan Panter, CPA, Abraham & Gafthey, P.C.

Moved by Shamroe, seconded by Geht, that the financial statements for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2015, be accepted.

CARRIED unanimously.

2. Consideration of 2016 Six Year Capital Plag:

isin, that th¢"Board authorizes the Executive Director to
t ,,"nts Plan— 2016 as pLesented to the City Manager for

Shanwroe clarified she would:consider Geht’s motion a friendly amendment, which she and
Palisin suppott.

The motion on the table is as follows:

Moved by Shamroe, seconded by Palisin, that the Board authorizes the Executive Director to
submit the Six Year Capital Improvements Plan — 2016 as amended to remove Fiber to the
Premises to the City Manager for review and approval of the City Commission and City

Planning Commission.

The following individuals from the public addressed the Board:



TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 3 February 9, 2016

Michael Nunn

Ben Munger, 1291 Lake Ridge Circle, Ratepayer
Kris Shafer, CEQ, Elevate Net, 121 E. Front Street
Jonathon Leeds, 1002 E. State Street, Ratepayer
Albert Steed, 225 Cochlin, Ratepayer

Randy Bishop, Torch Lake Township

J. Mueller, 101 N. Park Street, Ratepayer

CARRIED unanimously.

Item 5 on the Agenda being Appointments

None.

Item 6 on the Agenda being Reports and Communicafiois

a. From Legal Counsel,

‘case cited the Browi:Bark case in a water

1. W. Peter Doren reported a recent ¢
lawsuit.

b. From Staff,

c. From Board.

1. Bob Spence asked how the CIP decision sequence would be addressed. Chairman
Taylor requested it be brought back to the Board for further discussion.

Item 7 on the Agenda being Public Comment

No one from the public commented.

There being no objection, Chairman Taylor declared the meeting adjourned at 6:46 p.m.



TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 4 February 9, 2016

Tim Arends, Secretary
/st LIGHT AND POWER BOARD




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 23, 2016

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: February 12, 2016

Subject: Declaring Capital Ttems Surplus

As employees continue to organize with the recent completion of the Covered Storage Arca a
few items have been found that are no longer of use to the utility and staff is requesting the items
be declared surplus.

[tems are as follows:

1. Megger Thumper (used for cable fault diagnosis the equipment no longer works and the
company ceased making this model)
Refrigerator (Kalkaska Combustion Turbine)
Grey wood cabinet (Steam Plant)

Metal rack (Service Center)

Homelite chainsaw (Service Center)

(2) Customized weed whips (Steam plant)
Automatic pipe threader (Steam plant)
Floor machine scrubber (Steam plant)
Steel box (Service Center - Signals)

e il o

These items need to be declared surplus in accordance with TCL&P’s Capital Asset Policy
which states, “Any capital asset dispositions not considered scrap should be approved for
disposal by the Light and Power Board.”

It is staff’s recommendation to declare these items surplus in accordance with TCL&P’s Capital
Asset Policy. This item is on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed non-controversial.
Approval of this item on the Consent Calendar means you agree with staff’s recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the
agenda for full discussion. Tf after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the
following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY )

THAT THE BOARD DECLARES THE I''EMS DESCRIBED ABOVE AS SURPLUS.



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 23, 2016

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Karla Myers-Beman, Controller lW
Date: February 10, 2016

Subject: Fiber Fund Budget

In accordance with City Charter Chapter XVIII, section 179 (o), the 2016-17 Fiber Fund
Operating Budget must be submitted to the City Commission by its last meeting in April.

The Fiber Fund was reviewed by the Board at the February 9, 2016 board meeting and there has
been no changes made since the presentation. The budget is attached for your reference.

This item is appearing on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed by staff to be a non-controversial
item.  Approval of this item on the Consent Calendar means you agree with stafl’s
recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “ltems Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the
agenda for full discussion.

If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the following motion would be
appropriate:

MOVED BY s SECONDED BY s THAT THE

BOARD APPROVES SUBMITTAL OF THE 2016-17 FIBER FUND OPERATING BUDGET AS

PRESENTED TO THE CITY COMMISSION FOR I'TS CONSIDERATION.



Traverse City Light & Power
Fiber Optics Fund
2016-17 Budgeted Revenues and Expenses

FY 13/14 FY 14/15 FY 15/16 FY 15/16 FY 16/17
Actual Actual Budgeted Prejected Recommended
Operating revenues:
Charges for services b 229,i20 $ 255,752 § 288,200 § 281,076 § 326,316
Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages - 49,165 31,000 56,000 72,072
Fringe benefits - 35,167 21,000 37,000 57,632
Office & operation supplies - 331 12,000 1,000 1,300
Supervision & maintenance 60,987 - - - -
Overhead & Underground lines 19,522 4,085 - - -
Customer installations 2,187 - - - -
Termination boxes 23,834 - - - -
WIFI operations and naintenance - 23,225 37,460 33,500 32,000
Hardware and software - - - 5,400 4,000
Professional services - - 4,200 4,000 54,200
Legal services - - 2,200 2,500 2,700
City fee 11,464 12,788 14,435 14,100 16,400
Professional development - - 2,100 2,300 2,500
Insurance 791 1,161 1,200 1,300 1,400
Repair and maintenance - - - 5,500 5,000
Vehicle rental - 12,461 4,500 12,500 13,000
Miscellaneous 4,750 - - - -
Depreciation expense 90,109 116,606 138,400 143,000 145,000
Total operating expenses 219,644 254,989 268,435 318,100 406,904
Operating income (loss) 9,476 763 19,765 (37,024) (80,588)
Non-gperating revenuwes:
Reimbursements 21,628 296,122 30,400 38,400 38,400
Interest revenue 167 4 500 500 500
Total non operating revenues 21,795 296,126 30,900 38,900 38,900
Other financing transfers:
Transfer out - - - (175,000) (175,000)
Net income (loss) 5 31,271 §$ 296,889 § 50,665 § (173,124) § (216,688)

10



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 23, 2016

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
[ S'I'.1 912
To: Light & Power Board
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: February 10, 2016

Subject: Energy Efficiency Revolving Loan Funding — Additional Request

At the April 14, 2015 board meeting, the board agreed to buy down the interest rate with funds
previously provided to Venture Noith for the purpose of providing secure loans to TCL&P
customers looking to finance energy efficiency projects. These upgrades not only reduce
monthly utility bills for the customer, but reduce the utility’s peak demand which is a financial
benefit to all customers of TCL&P.

TCL&P offers the zero percent financing as a way to compete with neighboring utilities who
offer the same program through Michigan Saves. Since this adoption, Venture North has issued
one loan and has two more likely borrowers who will potentially exhaust the funds available
within the next few months. These borrowers are well established customers with a low
delinquency risk. The fund balance available to loan is $45,000 and the outstanding requests total
$87,000 exceeding the funds available by $42,000.

Staff recommends increasing the Energy Efficiency Revolving Loan Fund program by $50,000
to continue the current success of the program, and by adding the additional contribution to the
revolving loan fund; it provides an opportunity in the future for the funds to grow and become
self-sustainable for energy efficiency projects in our community for decades to come.

If approved, staff will create a fourth letter of understanding to incorporate the additional
$50,000 contribution to the revolving loan fund. A copy of the last letter of understanding is
included as a reference.

This item is appearing on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed by staff to be a non-controversial
item.  Approval of this item on the Consent Calendar means you agree with staff’s
recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the
agenda for full discussion.

If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the following motion would be
appropriate:

(Motion on following page)

11



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 23, 2016

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY , THAT THE

BOARD AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO TRANSFER AN ADDITIONAL
$50,000 TO VENTURE NORTH TO INCREASE THE TCL&P ENERGY EFFICIENCY
REVOLVING LOAN FUND PROGRAM TO A BALANCE OF $150,000 AND MODIFY THE
CURRENT LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING WITH VENTURE NORTH TO REFLECT THAT
CUMULATIVE LOAN BALANCE (REFLECTED AS A LONG TERM RECEIVABLE ON
TCL&P BALANCE SHEEET) WITH A FOURTH LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING SUBJECT

TO GENERAL COUNSEL REVIEW,

12



TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

Investing Our Energy In You

May 6, 2015

VENTURE NORTH FUNDING & DEVELOPMENT
202 E GRANDVIEW PARKWAY
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49684

Re: THIRD LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING, SUPERSEDING THE FIRST TWO LETTERS OF
UNDERSTANDING -- Venture North TCL&P Energy Efficiency Revolving Loan Fund

This agreement supersedes the first two Letters of Understanding dated November 28, 2012 and June 11, 2013,
respectively. The Traverse City Light and Power Department (“TCL&P™) is pleased to assist Ventuie North
Funding & Development (“Venture North”), the Traverse City Area Chamber of Commerce’s (“Chamber”)
sister economic development division under TraverseCONNECT, by providing funding to the Chamber in the
past in the amowunt of $100,000 for the Chamber TCL&P Energy Efficiency Revolving Loan Fund, now naumed
Venture North TCL&P Energy Efficiency Revolving Loan Fund (“Program”). TCL&P and Ventare North
share an understanding of the importance to promote and encourage energy efficiency in the Traverse City area.

Commercial and industrial customers of TCL&P are some of the area’s largest consumers of electric power.
TCL&P anticipates that with the cooperation of Venture North in the selection of projects most likely to reduce
electric demand at peak times, there could be a reduction in its costs of purchased power.

By signing below, Venture North agrees to conduct the Program as described in Attachment A which is
incorporated here by reference. Venture Notth further agrees (hat the funds it receives from TCL&P for the
Program will be earmarked to fund qualifying electric energy optimization projects of TCL&P commercial and
industrial customers only. Furthermore, if and when Venture North discontinues the Program, it agrees to
return the remaining funds, including any accrued interest, to TCL&P.

Consistent with TCL&DP’s strategic determination that achieving energy efficiency for commeicial and
industrial customers during system peak will benefit the utility, Venture North shall report to the TCL&P Board
the impact of this investment on reducing energy consumption during peak demand on an annual basis.

Sincerely,

g %(

Timothy J. Arends
Executive Ditector
Traverse City Light and Power Department

Venture North Funding & Development agrees to and accepts the terms detailed above this [ O+L?'lay of May,
2015,

Signed: &7{ M abl oz F—

title:  Excenfive 0irecto m

t: 231 922 4940 tclp.org
f: 231 922 4638

131 Hastings Street
Traversa City, Ml 49684




ATTACHMENT A

Program Description

The Venture North TCL&P Energy Efficiency Revolving Loan Fund (“Program”) will extend to Traverse City
Light and Power (“TCL&P”) commercial and industrial utility customers. The program will provide low-
interest micro-loans for businesses that ave investing in energy efficient measures identified through a
comprehensive energy assessment or audit.

Projeet Selection Process

Potential applicants will be required to complete a pre-qualification application via Venture North’s website. A
designated I.oan Review Comunittee will review and score qualified applications based on the following
criteria:

o Must be a confirmed TCL&P commercial or industrial customer;

« Completion of a comprehensive energy assessment ot audit;

« . Proven reduction of electric demand at peak times;

o The businesses need for financial assistance;

o The feasibility of the proposed business activity,

« The past business expetience of the applicant;

« Sufficient collateral pledged and/or guarantees;

o Capability of paying back the loan;

Terms, Interest Rates, and Fees

Loan conditions will vary based on type of project and the needs of (he borrower. The following identifies the
average size, term, and interest rate:
+ Loan Size: Up to $50,000
« Toan Term: Up to 5 yeats _
+ Interest Rate: between 0% and 5% - to be determined by Venture North’s Loan Committee, which
includes a TCL&P representative
« Customers may be required to pay a loan application fee

Administration

Venture Notth will provide the following administrative services for the Energy Efficiency Revolving Loan
Fund:

e Promote the Venture North TCL&P Energy Efficiency Revolving Loan Fund via Venturc North’s
website and standard Venture North marketing and communications. TCL&P will also promote the
program fo its customers through appropriate avenues;

Provide pre - qualification service of potential applicants;
Monitor and service loan(s) for the term of the note;
Establishment of a designated, restricted bank account;
Produce auditor ready financial statements;

Available to report to the TCL&P Board as requested;

&»

In consideration for the above administrative services provided by Venture North, it will retain 1.5% of the
interest payments of any loan for the term of the loan. Venture Notth will annually invoice TCL&P 1.5% on
any collected principal loan repayments for any 0% iaterest loans issucd. All loan principal and interest
payments (less the [.5% described above) will be re-deposited into the Venture North TCL&P Encrgy
Efficiency Revolving Loan Fund for future use.




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 23, 2016

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Tim Arends, Executive Directo
Date: February 12, 2016
Subject: Capital Improvement Decision Sequence Policy

As part of the utility’s Six Year Capital Plan (“Plan”) review at the last board meeting, general
counsel provided a guiding document that was included within the packet material named the
Capital Improvements Decision Sequence. Staff, from the direction of board member Bob
Spence, has incorporated this guiding document into a new policy, Capital Improvement
Decision Sequence Policy.

The purpose of this policy is for staff and the Board to use it as a guiding tool as to the stages of
commitment for a capital project, the level of decisions that have to be made, steps that need to
be taken for a capital project to proceed to the next stage, and when a capital project should be
included or excluded from the utility’s plan.

The policy is included for your review.

Staff recommends approval of the Capital Improvement Decision Sequence Policy as presented.
This item is appearing on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed by staff to be a non-controversial
item, Approval of this item on the Consent Calendar means you agree with staff’s
recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss any one of these matters, other than
clarifying questions, the items, individually, should be placed on the “Items Removed from the
Consent Calendar” portion of the agenda for full discussion. If after Board discussion you agree
with staff’s recommendation, the following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY )

THAT THE BOARD ADOPTS THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT DECISION

SEQUENCE POLICY AS PRESENTED WITH AN IMMEDIATE EFFECTIVE DATE.

15



Light and Power Department
City of Traverse City, MI

Adopted:

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS DECISION SEQUENCE POLICY

Purpose

To provide a guiding tool to staff as to the stages of commitment for a capital project and the
levels of decisions that have to be made and steps that need to be taken for a capital project to
proceed to the next stage.

Process

Annually during the preparation of the utility’s Six Year Capital Improvement Plan (“Plan™),
staff is required to evaluate and classify each proposed capital project to be included within the
Plan as to the stage of commitment (defined below) the project will be at when the utility
initially presents the Plan to the Board. The following are the Stages of Commitment:

1, Ideaor Concern. “Are we interested in this?”

Staff or Board sees an opportunity or need for a capital improvement that might
benefit the utility.
Staff internally prepares a report and analysis of that opportunity.

2. Preliminary Study. “We might want to do this.”

Staff (or the Board authorizes) a preliminary study and rough cost estimate.
Possible pubtlic hearing or input.
Study and public input shows it to be worthwhile endeavor.

3. Capital Improvement Plan. “We want to do this, if it is approved by the City and is good
for business.”

*

Added to the Plan.

Reviewed by the City.

Business plan prepared if appropriate.

Other studies or reports as may be appropriate for that project (c.g. environmental
impact).

Dropped trom Plan if business plan or study shows problem.

4. Project Authorization. “We will do this, if it is feasible financially and engineering-

WiSC.”
[ ]
[ ]

Refined business and cost analysis.

Engineering design and cost estimate.

Critical path chant.

Customer contracts or market study if appropriate.
Referendum possibility if generation.

16



5. Contract. ‘“We promise to do this,”
* Procurement contract.
¢ Construction contract.
¢ Change order possibilities.

Staff shall use this policy as a guiding tool for the capital project process, but more specifically
of when and when not to include a capital project in the Plan. Special circumstances may arise
where this policy may not be followed at which time Staff will provide to the Board rationale for

its decision.

Timothy Arends
Executive Director and Secretary
Traverse City Light and Power Board

17



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 23, 2016

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: February 17, 2016

Subject: Solar Avoided Cost Rate Tariff

At the November 10, 2015 Board meeting, Mark Beauchamp from Utility Financial Solutions
presented on the topic of distributed generation systems. The discussion included how to value
the energy generated from the solar arrays and the pros and cons of each methodology (long term
marginal cost, short run marginal cost, and current cost). After the presentation the Board
provided direction to have Utility Financial Solutions prepare the avoided cost rate for proposed
solar projects on the long term marginal cost.

Enclosed in the packet is the presentation of the results of calculating the avoided cost from solar
generation within TCL&P’s distribution system utilizing the methodology of long term marginal
cost. The results of the calculations are $.0808 per kWh for residential and $.0842 per kWh for
commercial, respectively.

By calculating the rate tariff on the long term marginal cost it provides a stable price signal to the
utility’s customers unlike the short run marginal costs that fluctuates with the market price of
power and does not provide credit for capacity value of customer’s generation. Additionally, the
long term marginal cost takes into account the theoretical cost of avoiding construction of
generation, which is the true cost of energy in the future rather than the current cost methodology
using the utility’s cost of service studies demand and energy component for power supply.

As part of the solar avoided cost rate tariff, the utility is moving toward preparing the Solar
Customer Generation Policy with a “buy all sell all” method to prevent any subsidization of
distribution and transmission infrastructure costs. This policy is planned to be before the Board
for approval at the next meeting. This rate will also be utilized for any future community solar
projects within TCL&P’s distribution system.

After the presentation, if the Board concurs with staff and Utility Financial Solutions in
approving a new Solar Avoided Cost Rate Tariff the following motion would be appropriate.

(Motion next page)

18



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 23, 2016

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY )

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE SECRETARY TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING
FOR THE PROPOSED SOLAR AVOIDED COST RATE TARIFI TO BE HELD AT
THE MARCH 8, 2016 REGULAR MEETING; AND FURTHER THAT A NOTICE OF
THE PUBLIC HEARING BE POSTED ON THE UTILITY’S WEBSITE AND PLACED

IN THE TRAVERSE CITY RECORD EAGLFE,

19



571 ‘swonnyog repureury Armn)

S

Apni1S 150D papIOAY JejoS
A11D) 9SJaAel |




D71 ‘suonnjos fepueury Lo

S

paulwialap sem A1)
9SJ9ABJ] 10} 1SOD paploAe unJd buoj syl Jejos J10)
3|1joJd uononpoud pue salepdn ubisap 31ed Juad3l
‘S1nsaJ Apnis 92IAJ3S JO 1S0D 41D1 Jolad syl buisn «
ym> 4od
S1U3D Z#80" |eldJaWWOD 10} pue Yymy 4o2d siuad
080" 2C 01 [elludpIisald Jo} Je|0oS JO anjeA d1DL
10} UoIleulWw.ialap 1S0D PIAPIOAE ue pala|dwod S{N «
ubisap
91eJ |edlnNau dNUIA3J pue 91kl Agpuels ‘1s0d
POPIOAE JB|OS UO S3IPN1S 1DNnpuUOod 0] SUOIIN|0S
|eidueul{ Allj1an pauleiad Ajauadad AllD) 9SJaAeS| <

MIIADY



150D
BEYPle

uny buo’ uny 1oys

11P3.D) 150D
PIpIOAY
UpaID

1SOD POpIOAR B3 SNjeA 01 MOY UO SaLioay) 9aiy

11p=d) 150))
POPIOAY JO anjeA 9yl buluiwialag




uoneJlauab siswolsnd
Jo anjeA Aljpeded Joj 1ipaJd aplaoid 10U Aejy «
J2Wo01snd 0] [eubls 3d1id 1U31SISUODU]| <

1edA uaAIb Aue ul Ajjennuelsgns Adea ue) «

SbuiAes uolssiwsuel| o

sbulAes 10D |an4 o

Jamod Jo aseydund 1dJep o

PoOpIOAE

S1 12yl 1S0D 9yl SI unJ 1oYys Ul 1S0d paploAe ayl
A11j1an syl o1 Ajddns samod sapiaoad Jswo1snd UIYA

uny 10oys
1IpaJ)
1S0D) PIPIOAY JO UOIIRUIWIRIR(



JusWaIINbal 9AI9SY

sbuiAes uolssiwsueld |

sbulAes 150D |an4

uollelausb papIioAe JO 150D |eride)

uollelausb

JO U0110NJ11Su0d buiploAe JO 1SOD [BdI119J03 Y]

® BuISN paulWIf1ap 3J. S1S0D PIPIOAY

o}

o

O

o

uny buoT

1IpaJD
1SO0D) PoPIOAY JO Uolljeuiwislegd



S1S0D |9Nn)
pue Aljdeded Yyi1oq 40} 1Ipa4d J9WO0ISND SIAIN) «
S1S0D 9beJoAe pue JUDWISSAUL |BDII0LSIY SOS[)
Alddng Jamod 10} Jusuodwod
AbJaua pue puewsap Yiroqg S31pN1s 3JIAIDS
JO 1S0D buisn paulwialap aJe 1S0D PIPIOAY <

150D 1Ud.LIND

1p=d)
1S07) PIPIOAY JO UOIBUIWIRIR(



DT1 ‘suoynjog [epueuty A1nn

S.

uonensiuiwy

uonew.Joju] Abisug SN) AOBBIS MMM WO} PIALIDP
9J9M 1lun buileJauab 1Xau 4o} sadid seb jeanieN
elep aduelpeli

|ed1101s1y (Adolesoqe] AbJaug ajgemausy [euoiieN)
T3YN WO4} pPaALISP Sem eiep uolldnpouad Je|os

d1D.1 wod} Ailddng Joamod
S9SS0T WI1SAS

WI91SAS uolssiwsuedl gns
suolleisgns
siawJojsued |

Saul] uonnnhguisiqg

S1S0D 1Ua.4ind U0
paseq pue sbuiAes 1s0) [eulbJey
uny-buoT pasn AllD asdaneld |

VN

4 AH AL A 4L A A



D711 ‘suonnjog [enueur] Ajnn

INM.ﬁmo.mm $[ssssc $§ se89% S $ TTOV'LT S ¢0°0L2°9 S S9SYe'Er 3 [eroL
76500 1S°/9L T6¥T S 90°CS S 9T 'EvE S €806 $ | S¥'997 $ et
96900 0£019‘T €Tz S vt i Gs¥e9 S 00SIC S sT9 ST
L1S00  ££'S9S°T 9T'TS S 96691 2 S CLLUTT S S6'96T $ €6698 S |ot
SPT0  voee |vTTL.  $ TCTIOT $ | 687LE9T S SYO0SOT  $ | ZLsTS S e
99ZT'0  6T/¥8'6 6v'68 $ T9SLO0T $  6T090C S ¥WOITT S S¥S0S'S S I8
8€90°0  T6'W6S'S [600T S [vOvw $ 1 T9veEe S 9swy S 1SvseT 0 S|
C€800 L68IVZL | S9TOT $ 6£6£9 00 S BT'€9ET S LOTHWOT $§  L9UTE Sl
€950°0  91°£T0°S 80T $  TWTEE $ ' 19°/9€T S Sv€es S wi0LT S |s
[9900 ¥L'8S8'Y ¥8'€8  $ TSTOE $ 870s6'T S 89789 S Zr0S8T %

88700  S6'089°C 1T€9  $ TE™MT $ Z€ESSY'T S sevsc S SsTes. 00 S

/8900 8¢006T |18TE ¢ 1SSvT 000§ | TETEL $ 98'shT S 8LYvL S e
T2Z10$ SvziLT $S|oL9t  § EvSLT S ~ SvvsE $ 96°/6C $ | €6°/68 S It

Yymy ssuinegiejol| sSuines  uoisSIwisuel] gns s3uines AS12u3 sguines s3uines Arpede) Yuolpl

Jad3s0) uonnqulslg Ppue uoneisqns uoissiwsues uoipnpoid

papioay

[e1auSpISaY - Jejos

SBUIABS [elluURpIS

oY




D711 ‘suonnjog [epueury Amnn

B0 ssore’ss $ [vstot § seslov $ - $ TIoViT $ 20029  $ 89sweec S|  [esoL
£290'0  80TI8 8'6s $ 90°CS $ OUEVE S €806 $ Sv'99z $ et
0££0'0 6E€T2LT  |ZT80T $ vv9cT $ SS9 $ 00STC  $ STLYY $ [t
11900 OL8TLT |60v0c $ 9669T $  9LLIT $ S696C S €6%698 S [or
98yT'0 ST68T6  |z8'esc $ TCTIOT 0§ 68LEIT § SO80T S LLSLTS S 6
T0ET0 OLWITOT [00ZS€ $ 79S0T  $ 610907 $ Wr9ITT  $ Srs0ss S8
T/90°0 9L968°S  |Z8TOF $ LvOMY $  19%eET $ 9%EWy S ISYSLT S|t

99800  Z8'STLL $ 68 S eU'€9ET § LOTVOT  § LouTE S |9

L6500  6TSEE's  |LTOTr $ TrTeE $  1979€T $ Srees S wTILT S |s

1000 8€60T'S |6vrvEE $ TSTE 0§ | 8T0E6'T S 89TEI $ wos8T S |v

7S00 T6'698C  |6TTSC S TEBYT S| CESSY'T S S6VST $ ST6SL S le

CeL00  L€S66T | 06'9ZT ¢ IS'SYT I . TETEL S 98SvT S 8LWWL $ [
9SCT'0$ Tree8T $ 2999 $ evsLT s| SYV8E S 96°L6T $ €6/68 St

ymy ssuines |ejoj| sSulnes  uoissiwsuel] gns ssulnes s3uines sSuines Aypedey | Yauolp
12d 150D uoilnquasig pue uoneisqns A31au3z uolIssIwsuel ] uononpolid

paplony

|eRI3WILUO) - JB|OS

SBbUIAeS [eldJaWwwWo))




D11 ‘suonnjog epueuLy A1

S.

All[1D®} UO JRIBN o
}lun Je|oS U0 J919|\ o

puo
adesn PUD 2UP3E 03 [aued Jejos U3 Ay woy

” U wl_ _ 3 —U w.h m C _-._ w“.w _\4 4 Jawolsn) [eloL ¥oeq SaA1S JaWOISN) WIOL UOKBIAUSS) [0 asn s Jawoisny

uoldnpoud
Je|os |e101 9y] uo
12W01snd S1ipaid AN «

s mea L

abesn ,@w
D11D3[2 S3I1l|1dB] [P10) - &~
UO p3]||Iq J2WO0ISNY)

abesq) Jawoisn) suluLd)d(q

PoyisN buijjig » bulsis

29



DT ‘suonnjog [enueury Am)

S.

(S X 69°Z$)S €1§ pabieyd
9q p|hom 1un Jejos (W § ojdwex3 AW
pajleisul Jad yiuo Jad abieyd [euonippy <

69°C S lejos pajjeisul Jo AV 42d 2@31ey) AJYruon jeuonnippy
6C°CE S 1e|0S woJ4} AISA023Y-J3puN [enuuy
S60'T | - Je|0S Jo M) T wouy uonanpoud Ym [enuuy
e T R TN T e e e
30800 150D paploAy
SOTT'0 & | | oy enuspisay adesany

uoliejjeisuj 1ejos Jo Ay 1od aSiey) [enuspisay

uoildQ |enuapisoy

30



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 23,2016

To: Light & Power Board
From: Tim Arends, Executive Directdr
Date: February 15, 2016

Subject: Project Authorization Request — Pole Replacement

Staff has prepared a packet of information and is requesting authorization from the TCL&P Board for
staff to proceed with the development, design and construction of the Pole Replacement Project. This
project was approved in the TCL&P Six Year Capital Improvements Plan in the year 2016-17.

Staff will be available and prepared to answer any questions regarding the project.

Staff recommends Board approval of the project authorization for the Pole Replacement Project and seeks
the necessary board approvals for expenditures in order to complete the project in calendar year 2016.

If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the following motion would be
appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY , THAT THE

BOARD APPROVE AS PRESENTED THE POLE REPLACEMENT PROJECT AND DIRECTS
STAFF TO SOLICIT MATERIAL QUOTES FOR THE BOARD’S CONSIDERATION OF

APPROVAL.,

31



TRAVERSE CITY

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST LIGHT & POWER

Project Name: Pole Replacements

Budgeted in CIP: Yes

Dollar Amount Budgeted: $650,000 (2016-17 year)
Date of Board Presentation: February 23, 2016

Objective: Target Completion date of November 1, 2016
Project Description:

The project consists of replacing approximately 300 substandard poles and related materials such
as cross arms, pins, insulators, ete. throughout the utility’s distribution system. The utility’s
crew will be handling the removing and disposal of the current substandard poles in place and
replacing them with newly purchased poles and related material. The utility will be replacing the
poles by major circuits starting with PC-22, BW-22 and CD-30

Project Purpose and Necessity:

The utility hired American Energy Services to evaluate each pole within the utility’s service area
to verify pole integrity within the distribution system, because the condition of wood poles
deteriorates over time due to factors such as weather, insect, bird and rodent damage or
mechanical impact.

The scope of the work encompassed visual inspection looking for rotting, cross arm damage,
broken pins and insulators and any other items that may jeopardize the integrity of the pole or
electrical system. Any poles that failed the visual inspection test or have been in service longer
than ten years required a sonic/sound test. Any poles that did not meet the visual inspection or
sonic/sound test requirements were reported to the utility with the recommendation for them to
be replaced.

The results of the testing encompasses approximately 300 poles that have to be replaced along
with related cross arms, pins and insulators, etc. based on the pole location.

It is important these poles are replaced, because once a pole’s condition has deteriorated to a
certain extent it could potentially fail under adverse weather conditions and place the reliability
and safety of the distribution system at risk. Additionally, these substandard poles can lead to a
cascading failure effect on nearby poles, and from both a public safety and cconomic
perspective, these could be very impactful on the community. The damage caused from a
cascading failure is far more impactful than a single pole failure. They tend to have longer
outages with the risk of people coming into contact with downed wires and other cquipment that
may be encrgized.

32



TRAVERSE CIYY

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST LIGHT & POWER

Project Benefits:

The benefit of replacing the substandard poles is mitigating the risk of outages on the utility’s
distribution system resulting from pole failures. By mitigating the risk of outages it promotes the
utility’s ability to provide safe and reliable power to the utility’s customers and allow the utility
to remain in compliance with the strategic plan goal of ensuring Average Service Availability
Index remains above 99.97%.

Timing of Project:

Due to the potential risk of these poles failing, this project is of high priority for 2016.

Project Timeline:

Bidding of materials will occur in spring with internal labor performing the construction starting
in April 2016.

Preliminary Engineering Cost Estimate:

Materials (approximately 310 poles & associated hardware) — § 180,000

Labor (3-man crew with bucket truck & digger truck) $ 385,000

Engineering & Administrative & Construction Inspections $ 45,000

Contingency (15%) $ 90,000

Total $ 700,000
Financing:

No bonding or borrowing is required. Current cash reserves have been allocated within the Six
Year Capital Improvements Plan,

Additional Revenues:
None.
Impact on O&M Expenses:

No immediate impact, the utility will have to continue to monitor and test the distribution poles
within the system in the future.

Staff Recommendation:

Replace the substandard poles identified by American Energy Services.

33



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 23,2016

RAVERSE CITY

IGHT & POWER

To: Light and Power Beard

From: Karla Myers-Beman, Controller Y2
Date: February 8, 2016

Subject: Quarterly Financial Report

Enclosed in your packet are the second quatter financial statements for the Electric and Fiber Funds.

Electric Utility Fund

As of December 31, 2015 (50% through the fiscal year) operating revenues are 48.7% of budgeted operating
revenues. Overall revenues have decreased compared to prior year because of the modifications made to the
PCR. formula and decrease in the wholesale cost of power,

Total operating expenses are at 48.32% of budget year-to-date, or very nearly on-budget, with purchase power
costs at 49.26% and public service costs at 38.92% lower than expected due to energy optimization funds not
fully expended. General administration expenses at 40.09% lower than expected because of expenses expected
to be incurred later in the fiscal year.

Net income through the first quarter is $1,168,210, which is approximately a $1.9 million decrease over the prior
year,

Cash flows shows approximately $4.9 million expended in capital assets, primarily for West Side Transmission
Line project, Pine and State Street Underground project, South Substation replacement transformers, and the
Covered Storage Building project.

Fiber Fund

Revenues in the Fiber Fund are 41.43% of budgeted operating revenues while expenses are 58.62% of budget
year-to-date. Salaries and related fringe benefits are at 100.6% and 111.34% of budget, because more time is
being allocated to fiber maintenance during the fiscal year than expected. WIFI operations and maintenance is at
63.84% of budget relating to Merit Network expense incurred this quarter relating to internet feed for the WIFI
system, a primary expense of this line item. The Fund has a net loss or change in net position of $(37,838).

It is planned the Fiber Fund will begin reimbursements to the Electric Utility Fund for the initial investment of
the backbone fiber network.

34



6SF 18661 S S]UIMISIAUL PUE [SED {EIO],
985 FFS 69 g uomsod jau [B)0, p1E6E9 MO0 palizjag
SELS0EL paRlnsanify SLETIFIS 539558 {¥)0 ],
STO LY VS s1asse [endes ul pazseau
uonisod 12y FLCR10%98 $19SSE JUALINI-UOU [EJO ],
6LS 8T EY U ‘pereivasdep Suleg sjesse [enden
89+°796°6 ssa1g01d ur uoIONIISUOD
169°¢6C°1 sjuatuasoldu puet pue pue’]
90T 905 T] sanlIqE] [B0L 1€6°8LE 3]2s J0] PIdY 1955y
998°7 JuawuiAoS5 Arewiid woly anp - sa0UBAPE WLS-5UO]
9V F8S 01 SINIIQBI] W1 Suo[ [e10] 6EC 611 19858 1jouaq WwowAojdwalsod 1ay10)
$)2SSE JUALIND-UON]
FEE'TET 01 Auiqer) votsuad jaN
80STSIT saouasge pajesuadiio)y FOI'C6E'ST S}3SSE JUILIND [BI0],
SIRI[IG L] ULIA}-3uo]
788°FS sasuadxs predaig
EFLIT6'] SADI[IGEL] JUALIND [#10], oFE6E9’L SBLI0IUIAU]
STF'S06 B[BYO
089°T1 Soxel
- iAol Arewred 03 angg 189°05 1S2J23U1 PAIITY
0s1°¢ sa0usqe palesuadwo) 099°8HLC {punyg 12mod puz 14S1T) SJUN0ISE 2[qII93[0dUN 10f
- SMUIARI POULBRUN) C01°647S JO $20UBMO[[B $83] ‘JaW0ISND
TTSTIT sysodep Jowolsny) S9[qBAISODY
L6LLOT sanIIgel] Jay3o pue sasuadxe paniosy LTRSTTST SJUA]SIAU]
128651 g sjqeAed sjunossy TEOCCL Y $ sjua[eAInbS Ysed pue yse))
S3I{IQEL] JUILIND) $J9SSE JULIND)
NOILLISOd LAN ONV SHLLI'TII V11 SLASSY
S107 ‘1€ HAAWHADAU
NOILISOd L3N A0 INFINALVILS
aNAA OIILOATH

(ueSIYoMAL ‘A1 2sa9ARA L, 0 431D 93 Jo Jupy Juauodwo) )

HIMO0d ANV LHOIT ALID ASHIAVIL

35



%97 6F SEH'1IE'TI T9E'080'CI 008'198'+T 1£0'029 JEE0EE' 1Y T9E'050°TI (L85'FE) S18'29%" LTTS08"(
%it'9 1FL'80T'T 6ETIST 000°25%°C (TP1'p) 10F°€81 [ E ol T£L'E otL's
%80 t¢ F19°588 98€"[LT 0002217} 8LT'TE 801°6ET 98 1L $z9's 1i+'6e SEQ'9Y
250£°65 SEO'OLL'L $O6'L8S'T 000'HIE (980" 171 160°60L'T $96°L88°T 11z T60'T8T 18%'48¢
%6i0LS F66'896" 900°119'T 000'085°F 006'L8 SO1ETET 9200°119'T (605701 6866 089'F6<
%588 St 616'€Z0'E 180°065'1 000'HIL Y ({L2'v8) E5E'FLL'T 180'069'1 £1£°LT CETECE 95¢'0€E
%l9t 0T’ 9EL'8] 000'TH 9£L'S1 - 9£L'81 6LET - 6lEF
%EGLY [09'502'1 66£'155'1 000'£5T'€ 66L'LET 009'¢i 66T 185'T 01059 166'T [00'11¢
%6T86 S16'TS $80'8€0'E 000'160°€ 166'15T F60'98L'T $80'8€0'E 8t STE'TLY 1L1'tTS
%LYTT £6E°661 SEP'8S 008'L8T 928821 (18g'0L) SHH'8s (g86'6¢) (651'¢8) (£y1'611)
%L 01 000°009 DOO'TL 000°CLS 000'CL - 000°TL 000°FT - 000'tT
%86'FE 7817902 216011 001°LIe (gst'cr) £0b'+8 G 008L) 1L€Lt 1€8't¥
%00°0¢ 056'761'81) 065 76181 0515808 (6L6'2r6) LE'SEINGL 008°T65'$1 SLoIes £99° 154 662°€10°C
%8 e (€e0'sET) LIL'IPE 08L'95Y 430119 SET'I1T LiLire 091'T8 EEI'6Y 16T'1£E1
%9TT (95F'+T) 95 00876T (9£¢) 001l ¥9¢ (560°1) 0011 3
%66'€E (619's01) 186't8 0007082 (£99'%2) 99651 186'¢8 16’6t} 6EP'OF (ger'e)
%9E01Z LYl LYEIIE D087C01 1927061 L8%'sT LYTSIE 991°EL] 9119 E8TSEL
%89} (zreoe) 28 008°F¢ (gge} [§:7A $REY - - -
%108 (£19'8) LES'SE 05t 979°C1 116'61 LES'SE ! Sep'l 9L¥|
%9079 QLI'TTTL) PI0°666°1 0071778 178°0€S £0T'59%°1 PT0°666"1 $59°¢E ££6°0£T SEPPOT
%068 (PL6's1) 9z0'ET DOC'6E (678) $68°ET ST0°ET €571 STE1 £95'C
%L8'PS {grg'81071) AINEL 000°006'¢ 06€°LSS oLeLe | ZEUI8Y $L9'€S LEE'S61 (LY 8
%STEL L) 9z 80T ) 0g 9z - - -
%I11°9L {g9c's) LE9'9T 000°SE 659°1 SLETT LEY'OT {(036'5) $E9°01 90y
%1881 (I 181'5¢ 000°L81 {Tes'1T TEL'9S 181°5¢ (o3g'01) (A2 98H'E
%l0SSs {666'9T) 100°€E 600°09 (FTg's) 978'S¢E 100°€s (116'y) LLD'S 991"y
YLb'St (TFL'S88°91) 65L'ISS'ST 005'L0L'TE (1£T'+69'1) 166°55E°L1 65L'158°S]1 178'S1y $69°T07'C SISLIYE
9%6T'8S (Lee'ye) LY 000'¢S TL6'R I16L'SE £9L°LY 9T] 86L'9 710’8
%$9'0¢ {Lez'os) €90°86 000'561 0L 19086 £5L°86 =9 65591 S69'97
%L0'TY (39t'g0t) TES'LLL 000'98C (396'01) 105'881 TES'LLL (zocc) T56'0T 06<'L1
%S 6F (01T'8%0'5) 06L'ILEY 000°040'01 (Lo1'€D) LEE'VE6'Y 06L°1L6'Y FISEFL {0ts) ¥86'TL
%08’ LY (Feg'6Le's) 991°2€6"L 005'99L°51 (918'650°1) 786'965'3 991'LES"L (zIs'50D) 1£8°99%"] 610°192°1
%EY'LY (s5T'61€'E) SYL'SID'E §  00D'SEE™S (+56'615) §  669'8E5°E $  SKLBIOE (o89'1TD) $  w60'I6Y §  pIv69s 3
uuu.ﬂ:b Fu—a_ﬂhc?ﬂu:ht ey uuuﬂnm AUI I 1e2 3 10LL ] (emdy AU LY AT X JOLLY EnpRY
MO =\= uu&HthGr.w JCP 03 L—“u\f popudtuy aop 0y hﬂ9> nep oy Lﬁﬁaﬂ nep m hﬂv\ﬁ NP [+1} Puogy NEp 0} .—TEGE Quﬂ—v 5] ——uﬂc—.?.,

uostrcdwo?) TP 0) ITI A 0) ISPy

uosurdie]y Iy 03 ITIA

uosLIvduio]) Yruoly 03 Yruoly

sasuadxa Jomoed oseyaung
F2THJUOD jTamerg
SO0y || Yput]

e [EOT 28Ty 20
Wl [Te] fj3qdun)
ucmntﬂ,H. :O.:m—dn__..EDU
BTN DU, TN
sty Aduolg
a8pug Suisuey

OSIN

siso3 Aoede])

sasundxs omod asegomd von

SN WOLTAIUIDY
SHUEIANT [EI0],

SMURAd1 Suygrradousu [e30],

SJASSE JO AILS 1O SSOLANT)
WO {§aIdu]
SUIWASINGUIIRY

V0B [EIFDE IO
MO Uy

sanudads Jugeasdousy

sanuAda Juyrde Y10 630

STIOAUT]|3DSIA

2wORLY OSIA

§1G9P P JO AIDACINY
drras Jo speg

fngqol pu astpusymsw
SIUTOSTP PAUILI0

FINUIAIS Fuyesddo KO

$31eS - SnUIA Bugeaddo jejoy,

SIS prEg
Junydn pang
Apoyne ayqng
jermsnpug
wnmuquEOU
[EnuapISay

sp{Es « $2nudAdl Suneasdp

SI0T 1€ YFIWADEA GAANT qOTHEd ZHL 404

(QELHNYND) TYALDV ANV LIDANE - SASNAIXH ANV SEANIATY 40 TINATHIS
ANAA DTNLDATE

{ueSnpi *AuD asxaaea ] Jo LuD oyl o nuy Juauedwo)d v)

IO ANV LHOI'T AL HSHIAVYEL

36



018gl BIT°891'N S [HIEE 43 (0L6'756'T} $ GLE'ETTE $ DIT'S9T'T g 00r'TET S (gs9'sa} 8 LIL'SIT $
%TE 3 GEL'D0T'SI 16T'F20°L1 050°1£2'5€ 166'600°[ 00€'F100F 162'FT0°L1 SETOTT LYE'LLS'T IB5'L6L'T
%8105 0£0°1L0'] 026'8L0'] 0007051 8LE'59 TH5E10'T 0L6°3L0°1 968701 <6891 STE'6LE
%tS ¥ 0601501 CO0'0sL 000°108"1 - 000054 000°05L - 000's2! 000’5t
Y%lLl'3F ¥iece 939°0¢ 000'cs L1S'T 6E1'8T 989°0¢ vt SL9Y 660'S
%60°0r TIE'0rS 38F'15E 008106 951°8¢ £EEEEE 2IF'19¢ CE5SE ¥18'Ly DLEER
%Z6'8E SE I TSH'P9T 00F°6L9 (oo0'L2) 5P 16T TSP oL TOY'Ee 186°S€ £8E'85
%I99Y [LE'8LT 6TI'ErT 00§'1TS SP6'E ¥81°65C GZTIEVT JIAA 65071t STL'TY
%rsIs TURLI 8LI'581 00E'65€ $E6°01 orTrLl 8L1°581 {(598°T) TEY'IE £T9'6T
%T0'6Y IP0LE0T 6016761 § 051'9L6E 8F6LE 5 LTS695'1 5 601°6F6T 3 321881 5 8IT'TLL 5 96£'0ZF 3
1PIpng (d1qTaoaciun) ey wipng EELERE T AT 8 011 g [Tsy EELSXET e} ICdK JOLIY [z ey
300, AqEI0ABY nep 03 ABIX pepuInry FEP 03 TR ATP 03 JWIN NEP 03 JEI L aEp 0} YIUoy EP O3 YOOI EP 03 GEUOLY

uosusdmoy) ABP 0) 1TI A 03 39Tpng

ucsuTduwo) JEd L 01 JCIX

USLITA WO} (UOA] 03 YRUOTA]

uoyssod 39w w ALuEy)

sosuadxo jeio),
upneaaidsag]
g Ao
20URMEU]
sosuadxs Y10
FuRdXD ROYTASIUIRIPE [LIINID
AT MRy
SuUgUReDDT IIWeISHy
UOESSIURUE ],
uoynqrysIq

S10Z 1€ WASIWADIAA CAANT AOrdAd IAL 20

(qaLIGAYND) TYALDY NV LEDANE - SASNIINT ANV SAANTATY 40 TTNCTHDS
GNAI DRLLDATE

(wesiyny D asadaeay yjo AU ayl jo yupy Juauodwo) v}

HIMOd ANV LHDIT AL ISA3AVIL

37



38

590°0 $ 8900 §  GSTIT0SSTEL §  FREGRTTLT 8 TEUSFEOLE 908'E6E'ST R0,
srqesndde ou ajqeanydde jou 00°000°CL 00000 vE argearfdde jou apqzaidde jou (1asatwn) 81507 Apsrde) vadW
oLO'e 0L0'0 £9'SELST 17618 EE9'LOT £04°19 sulqa], pursy -
FLL10 FL1I'D SR'SGET1SE] 6071007 1E TLS'089°C] C8F9CLT $10U307 AJUOIS
09070 0900 LBEBE'ILT ST ELOGE LLY'SDS Y S19°T9L SeD) [Iypue]
9800 #1170 9L 1S0'069°L LL'SPS0ET SELT1SS°61 999°810°C QUIQIN ], GOISNqUIOT
090°0 9500 8E76067L80°T £9°LEETS0E TIE108°PE £91°68F'S 1941 2128
<900 €00 09680 19T 17089 +6E P8 98 6E SLLOST'L oH TRgdwe)
61070 10/AICH €88STI51 6E0FL'E 000°9L1°8 - WENuUey ety

{2100} P00 LY SEF8S {6y'Lri'611) (00L°915'¢} {009'126'C eloqag

arqeardde jou siqeondde ot (5L 9TL L) (£6'190°C8} 2[qeardde jou arqestidde jou UOISSIWSUEL ],

srqeordde jou apgeorjdde jou 0T 18111 SC AT Iqeadde jou agesydde jou JULIIA[OM,

[A-EI Y TFGILE] YddW - OSIN

(z£o o) 600 P9LOS 011 {£5°9a1'F8) (o0z'91+'E) (009'126°C M - OSIN
oy QOSIN
500 5 7500 S LSYBOSENE  § SELIFTS $ 000 b16'88 000°915°01 adpug Suisue|
NLP 0F 1AL yiuow 1500 1502 NEP yluow HIMOCd QASVHDHENd

Y1 103 AN ERLTRETE | TP 0} JBIX Lpuopy 03 aeak N HMM
12d 3500 aad 1500
SIETRIDIR SYIUOTIU JO ISHEIDIG JUIWIIRIS JWOIUT 03 2215 300 OP $INUIASY :3ION
SEEF66'ST s QLL'OVE'T £ GSLTTH' 91 S5 608'EC sugielol
L1100 98I0 Lol SFO0°0 SoBl0 CI61°0 STOTEL S+’ 81£°699 699" spufi] 1921 pUR preg
(5100 76600 91800 (05100 SLEO'0 $T8O°0 pLo'TEL'S SFT'8SL 055'$T6°CH 09TTEL6 SITES JEINSnpu;
{1g10°0) £2C10 8000 {op100) 6Tel0 6501°0 PrETLOLL TLL'BOTT OIF L08R LL £LT°661701 SO[ES |E10IBWWO)
(31100} $ £ITl'0 $ L6010 §  {1o100) 5 SETI0 S FLOTD $ TOTES6'T % TITOLY 5 SLUTTO LT CRETLLE Y SDJUS [THUSpISay
IDUEBLIEA 2ep o} aep DULLILA yjuow yluom INUIAIL INUIAXS nep fiuouw SATVS
2Ep 0} Ivad JEaA Jo1ag 0] aBa} Alyiuow 1eak Jo11g juaIny) JEP 0} JBIZ Alqyuoy 0) 1894 H AN HMM
SIEG/ONUDAIY SIBG/AVUDASY

SI0T ‘[ YAAWIDIA CHANT dOTdAd HHL 404
NOLLVINHOANI AYVINFNATILNS
aNNA DIYLDATH

(ueByd1A] ‘A1) aSIAEL I, 30 A3 3yl jo pup) jusuedwie)) y)

HIMOd ANV LHDIT ALID ASHIAVEL



TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER
(A Component Unit of the City of Traverse City, Michigan)
ELECTRIC FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to employees
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments of City fee

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Cash payments from funds
Customer deposits paid
Rental income received
Reimbursements received
Net eash provided by noncapital financing activities
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Proceeds from assets held for sale
Purchase of capital assets
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities
Cash flows from investing activitics
Sale of investments
Interest and dividends
Net cash provided by investing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

18,282,551
(2,313,691)

(13,173,849)
(1,113,259)

1,681,752

19,441
14,136
39,925
216,247

289,749

601,969
(4.995,397)

(4,393,428)

(2,005,425}
84,981

{1,920,444)

(4,342,371

9,098,003

4,755,632

39




9TE'STET $ uomisod Jou (g0t 98¢ MO[JIN0 paLIajag
|l|.|l.._mw.m—m pajoLsanun)

coI'019°1 spasse [eyrdeo ul porsaAu} £01°L98'1 S)ISSE 1810 1,
POL'TY saguIGEl [¥10], SOT'0I9°T SJISSE JUILINI-UOU |80 J,

€9L'0T Aurprqes] vopsuad 191 08001971 1ou parecordap Juraq s1asse jende)y

LOO'L saouasqe pamesuadwo) or ssaadoxd ui voponsuo)
SIYII BN WLId) BUOTF SIVSSE JUILIND-UON
Nmm-.—uﬁ SIPIIGEY JUILAN2 JBIO ], QQOrth SJIESE JUDLITL) [B30 |

- juswroaod Arzwnd o sngg ge sasuadxe predaig

0LT'FI SNUIADI pIWIRL) 9G6'G Alojuaau]

0£E SANI[IQE]] JOYIC PUE $55U2dXD panioay VAN 2]QRAIIIL SIUNOIDY

76E $ a[qeAed syunosoy RE DT [N SIUR[BAINDS YSED PUR 1jSBD)
SAQIIQET] JUILINT) $JISSE UMD

NOILLISOd LIN ANV STILI'IGVIT S1ASSY
S107°1€ HAEWBDBA
NOILISOd LUN 4O INTWELVLS
aNNd ¥Ea1d

(ueBnpy A1) asadara ], Jo A1) ay3 jo 3} ruduodwo)) v)

HIAO4 OGNV LHOIT ALID HSAAAVAL

40



(€00°88) 3 976'ST®1 5 GIGELED S
- t0L7E08'1 $9L'€98°]
%EtEL {£00'88) (5£8°L9) £91°0§
%000 oot og) - 00%'0%
(zeLie) (geg'2e) $9L781
9429’88 080° 111 SSETLEL SEP'89T
%6118 $58°L9 9F3°0L 00+°8€1
%00°0 ST - SEFPI
%5821 (sgse) 5S0's 005'¢
%000 00T'1 - 00Tl
%000 001'T - 001°T
%000 008G - a0t
%E8 €D e8I 8L8'ET 00v'LE
%bT 0 1L6'T1 6% 000'El
%PELLL {18¢D) 13€°¢T 000'1T
%09°001 (981) 951'1¢ 000'1€
107ALCH (£89"491) LIS'611 00ZT'88T
i0/AIQ# 621 671 -
Y%t It (z18'991) 3 88611 §  00T'88T S
WwspRyg j0 {(d[qeLoacjun)) Enpy 198png
uuducov._uh u_aﬁ._c;.—nr.m JIEP O} ICD Popuany

1uoA Jo pud ‘ustusod Jox
seak jo Juraurfaq “womsed 1oN
uornisod 1au u 2FueyD

SIUDLUIASINGUINY
SanudAdl Bunsiadouoy

aodui Sutyraad(y
sasuadxo Sunreaado 3oy

uonevaudag

) A1

TR 212424

2IUBINEL]

1uowdoejzAap [RUDISSARL]

JENIOEIILOD PUL [RUOISSDJOL]

ADUBUIRIBW pus suoneidd LM

sorpddng

syyouag oful g

saffea puB soLm(ESg
sasuadxa SuneasdQ

sanuasdd Jugraado jrie ]
fuigqol pue Juisipueyoiapy

S201AID5 103 sodreqn
SIMOAII Buyredo

S10T 1€ HTFWIDTA AHINT dOTIId EHL 304

{OLLISOd LIN NI SHONVHD

ANV SASNIIXT "SENNTIATE A0 INFWIALYLS

ANN4 HFdId

{ueBiyaa *A1rD 35194k ], Jo A1 ay) Jo nun juduodwo)) v

HIAMAOd NV LHDIT ALID HSUIAVUL

41



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF FEBRUARY 23, 2016

‘:.51. 19)‘9

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS
L

To; Light & Power Board
From: Pete Schimpke, Manager of Operations & Engineering f

Date: February 17,2016
Subject: GRP Electric System Study & 6-Year Plan Engincering Services Proposal

Attached for your information is a proposal from GRP Engineering to perform a comprehensive
Electric System Study & 6-Year Plan (Study). The Study will included analysis of current conditions
as well as five (5) and ten (10) year assessments using expected TCLP load growth.

This study will help to ensure that the TCLP electric system not only maintains its current level of
reliability but also help identify areas where reliability can be further improved, Improvements
identified in this Study will be given serious consideration by Staff for inclusion in the TCLP 6-Year
Plan. )

In addition, GRP will include a review of the reliability for the top ten (10) load and crifical
customers continuing our commitment to Key Account Customers. The study will also include a
review of the use of our distribution capacitors which has not been recently done. .

The deliverables include a written report, drawings presenting proposed improvements, estimated
project costs, and a final presentation to the TCLP Board if desired.

42




GRP

Engineering, Inc. Power Utility & Electrical Engineering

Febiuary 4, 2016

Mr. Tim Arends

Executive Director

Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings St.

Traverse City, MI 49686

RE: Eleciric System Study & 6-Year Plan
Engineering Services Proposal

Deat Tim:

GRP Engineeting, Inc. is pleased to present this proposal to Traverse City Light & Power (TCL&P) for
engineering services to complete an Electric System Study & 6-Year Plan. The study is being
completed to insure system capacity is maintained, reliability is improved, and upgrades are completed
in a logical fashion.

The scope of this electric system study is to review the distribution system from the substation breakers
through the transformer level for equipment and conductor capacity issues, plus voltage issues under
several system scenarios for both current system loads and projected 5 and 10 year load growth,
Furthermore, the study will include a review of the reliability for the top ten load and critical customers
plus a review of VAR loading and capacitor placement. Loading on secondaries and services will not be
analyzed as part of this study. The study will be completed through the use of TCL&P's electric system
model in Milsoft’s WindMil Engineering Analysis Softwate. WindMil will be utilized to perform
system load flow analysis under normal and 1* contingency conditions, including equipment and
conductor loading, capacitor placement, and circuit load balancing.

The results of the system analysis will be utilized to verify and adjust the current 6-year capital project
plan. The report will include drawings depicting system capacity issues, recommendations, and cost
estitates for system improvement projects.

Electric System Study Scope of Services
The scope of scrvices for the Eleotric System Study & 6-Year Plan includes the following:
¢ Conduct study review meeting with TCL&P staff.
o Interview TCL&P staff to document recent history of electiical distribution system operational
issues, outages, and potential growth areas.
s Retrieval of system winter and summer peak circuit loads.

6290 Jupiter Avenue NE Suite D 459 Bay Street
Belmont Ml 49306 Petoskey MI 49770
P: 616.942.7183 www.grp-engineering.com P; 231.439.9683

F: 616.285.6448 F: 231.435,9698




* Create working system model from base provided by TCL&P including adding source data,
conductor characteristics, construction codes, and transformer impedances, Base model must
include customers correctly connected to fransformers.

Integration of customer billing peak load data into model.

o Establish TCL&P electric system operating philosophy including maximum conductor and
equipment loading limits and voltage limits. Conductor thermal loading limits will be the basis
for continuous and emergency conductor ampacity ratings.

¢ Analyze and review system for capacity issues and voltage issues. Analysis will include
conductor and equipment loading levels, voltage drop, capacitor placement, and load balancing.

o Perform load growth scenario for 5 & [0 years based on allocation of historical load data.
Complete voltage drop and capacity analysis for each load growth case for several system
scenarios including loss of a major circuit and loss of a substation transformer

¢ System analysis will include circuit review utilizing all major circuit ties.

o Analyze system reliability for both top ten [oad customers and top ten critical customers,

e Preparation of drawings depicting conductor loading conditions under each load case and
recommended conductor changes.

Prepare construction cost estimates for recommended projects,

Present preliminary electric system report including proposed revisions to the 6-year capital
project plan, drawings, and proposed conductor and equipment changes to TCL&P staff. Revise
report as requited by the TCL&P.

¢ Conduct final presentation to the TCL&P Board.

Deliverables
Deliverables at the end of the study include the following:
s Report outlining system analysis and recommended upgrades over the next five years. Three (3)
copies of the report and drawings will be provided along with one electronic copy.
o Cost estimates for recommended projects.
¢ Drawings illustrating system capacities at current and S-year load growth.
¢ Drawings depicting locations of recommended projects to complete in the 6-year plan.

Proposal is based on TCL&P providing their Milsoft WindMil system model including consumets
correctly connected to transformers which will be utilized for loading analysis, plus a distribution
system map in either AutoCAD or ESRI shape file format for creating conductor loading drawings.
Review of generation facilities, power purchase, and rates is not included in this study.

GRP Engineering, Ine, proposes to complete the Electric System Study & 6-Year Plan engineering
services for a lump sum fee of $34,000. All services performed for the TCL&P within this scope will
be billed on a monthly basis. Should additional services be required outside the scope of this proposal,
we will complete those tasks on an hourly basis based on the attached rate sheet.

We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal and look forward to being of service to you.
Please contact me should you have any questions.

6290 Jupiter Avenua NE Suite D 459 Bay Street
Belmont d1 49308 Petoskey M| 49770
P: 616.942.7183 www.grp-enginesring.com P: 231.439,9683
F: 616.285.6448 F: 2314399698

44




Sincerely,
GRP Engineering, Inc,

L. Pitesholl

Michael P. McGeehan, P.E.
President

Enclosures

ccfenc: TCL&P
Mr, Pete Schimpke

6280 Jupiter Avenue NE Suite D
Belmont Ml 49306

P; 616.942,7183

F: 616.285.6448

wwav.grp-engincering.com

459 Bay Street
Petoskey MI 49770
P: 231.439.9683
F: 231.439.2698

45




